City of Seattle Request for Proposal #POL-201
Addendum 
Updated 8/04/11

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #POL-201, titled “Common Operating Picture System” released on 7/18/11.  The due date and time for responses is hereby extended to 8/17/11 at 4:00 PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective bidders and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	7/21/11
	7/22/11
	Is there a requirement for the product to be GOTS or COTS?


	No
	

	2
	7/21/11
	7/22/11
	How will compliance with NIMS and ICS be defined/determined?


	Internal expertise will rate the efficacy of NIMS compliance.

Adherence to the DHS/FEMA NIMS Core document dated December 2008 located online at  http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nims/NIMS_core.pdf and ICS documents located at  http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims/IncidentCommandSystem.shtm

	

	3
	7/21/11
	7/22/11
	What are the existing data sources at SPD, SFD, SCL, SPU and SDOT? How many data sources for each entity?


	This is being determined.  For sake of the response, assume there are 4 data sources for each entity.  This is CAD, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources.
	

	4
	7/21/11
	7/22/11
	Will the browser-only requirement be applicable to all administrative tasks as well as end-user tasks?


	Not necessarily.
	

	5
	7/21/11
	7/22/11
	Does City of Seattle plan to administer the system or will that reside with the Vendor throughout the life of the contract?


	Either  
The City is staged to be the administrator of this system, but we are open to other support models based on the best practices recommended by the Vendor.

	

	6
	7/21/11
	7/22/11
	Does support imply direct end-user support or secondary administrative support?


	Yes
	

	7
	7/21/11
	7/22/11
	Under the "Mandatory Technical Requirements" section of the RFP you state: 

"The application will not depend on other software that is distributed separately from the application and is not mentioned explicitly in this RFP document."

Does this mean that any software not mentioned in the RFP or any software other than ESRI, which is mentioned in the RFP, will not be compliant with the mandatory technical requirements? Or are you saying that the proposed solution cannot rely on any software not explicitly stated in the RFP response.
	The proposer’s response must list all software that is required for the successful runtime environment.  For example, if the product requires Tomcat, IIS, Adobe, Photoshop, Sharepoint applications that require separate installation and/or licensing, the proposer must list these in their RFP response.

	

	8
	
	8/01/11
	
	
	Add the following clarification statement concerning the GIS integration to Section 6, “Scope of Work”.
“For the GIS Integration, Mapping functionality described in the technical requirements:  The City of Seattle currently as an ESRI Enterprise License.  It is the desire of the City that this product maximize the usage of the City ESRI system in the vendor’s product.  The vendor is expected to provide the functionality identified by the technical requirements with the City of Seattle ESRI infrastructure by any combination of the following:  leveraging ESRI’s display mechanics, integrating with ESRI tools, OR consuming the City’s ESRI data sources.  For example, if a vendor has an alternative display mechanism, it must consume the City of Seattle’s ESRI Data.  Another example, for the routing functionality, the current ESRI model does not provide a routing tool. We expect the vendor to provide a routing tool unsent ESRI’s functionality.



	9
	7/22/11
	8/01/11
	Can the city provide more detail or an example of a support and service management plan in reference to the following statement in the Scope of Work section: “Vendor will provide a support and service management plan”.


	The city is looking for the vendor’s plan for providing support.  This should include SLAs, Staffing, schedules, Processes and management contracts.


	

	10
	7/22/11
	8/01/11
	Which web browsers are the vendor expected to support?’


	Internet Explorer, version 6 and higher

Safari, version 5 and higher

Firefox version 3.4 and higher


	

	11
	7/22/11
	8/01/11
	Regarding ID #253, Technical Requirements”, If a vendor is building a custom solution for the city of Seattle or building this system from scratch, how can the requirement be met. It takes quite a bit of effort to get the NIMS Support Center to review and approve systems.  What is the city’s expectation in meeting this requirement?  Why do have this requirement?”


	See response in right column.
	Reword requirement ID #253 as follows:
Has the proposed ICS software system been reviewed by the NIMS Support Center STEP program and found to be consistent with NIMS concepts and principles?  If so provide results.



	12
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #165.  Please provide more description on this requirement.  Specifically, we are trying to determine if the ICS software needs to have a playback feature.


	The requirement states:”The system shall be able to create or generate a timeline of an event and display it with an interactive, visual representation. Interactivity should allow for drilling into a timeline from the visual to see additional details associated with that time point.”  
Play back would be ideal but not necessary for this feature.  Having the data available to navigate and organize by attribute (Time, etc) is acceptable.
	

	13
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #62.  Please provide more descriptive information on what is meant by “Response resources, equipment, and processes for any current or planned activity.


	The requirement states: “The system needs to monitor and display Response resources, equipment, processes (also availability status of each) for any current or planned activity”
Response resources are the resources normally managed by the partner’s central system, for instance, fire trucks, police officers, utility trucks.  Additional resources could be created in the ICS system for a particular incident.   These resources would be accessed and tracked per their assignment to their home department, accessible by the ISC and alternately assigned to a resource newly created in the ICS.
	

	14
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #295.  Does the RFP require Microsoft Office or Adobe products be included, or is this requirement stating that the solution will support and not conflict with these formats?


	The requirement states:  “

The software proposed shall ensure that a compatible document management software files including the following formats: Microsoft Rich Text Format (RTF), Microsoft Office Excel, Microsoft Office Word, Portable Document Format (PDF), ASCII text, and XML”
The City is expecting that the document repository will be used to house the documents in the formats specified.  If the document is a PDF, we expect the software to launch the pre installed and configured adobe products to display/edit as appropriate.  We expect the same functionality for the other formats listed.


	

	15
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #415.  What ICS form does this “ICS Property Report” refer to?


	The requirement states: “The software shall generate and archive a softcopy ICS property report upon incident termination whenever the property data feature is used.”
This is not an ICS form. If the system can track property information, then that information should be saved and be available in a report.

	Technical Response ID #415 should be modified to read as follows:

“ The software shall generate and archive a softcopy property report upon incident termination whenever the property data feature is used”

	16
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #128.  Please provide more descriptive information on this requirement.  Specifically, what “alert list” is being referenced?


	The requirement states: “The system shall be integrated with the agencies HR systems so roster and call back information is up-to-date, but also allows the agency to populate the alert list with individuals (and groups) outside of the agency.” The partner agency dispatch centers (SPD, SFD, SPU, SDOT, SCL) each have “notification lists” or “alert lists” of personnel who must be notified in case of a significant event. The requirement is to allow personnel data from each of the partner agencies to be used to populate notification or “alert lists” through the proposed solution, as well as having the ability to enter the alert information for a person or group outside of one of the partner agencies. A police example would be: Certain personnel need to be “alerted” and receive a notification when there is a bomb threat. That includes bomb squad members and pre-determined command staff. If a significant device is found, a commander may want to use the proposed solution to notify a military Explosive Ordinance Disposal unit. The proposed solution would allow for the entry of outside agency contact information for the alert

	

	17
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #227.  Please provide more descriptive information on this requirement.  Specifically, what does “activity log management of the application” refer to?


	The requirement states:”Please describe the activity log management of the application.”
The city would like to understand how the application logs its activities and how those logs are managed, archived, etc.
	

	18
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #25.  Please describe the requirement of turn-by-turn, and if audible is required or a nice to have?


	The requirement states : “The system shall provide a map of route (shortest path and turn by turn) as provided by GIS routing technology”
The City would like the system to be capable of providing turn by turn directions from any item on the map to any location on the map taking into account the current known state of the roads.  For instance if there are road closures known to the city the system should route around them.  Audible is not required.
	

	19
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Technical Response ID #433.  Please provide more descriptive information on this requirement.  Specifically, a list of what devices will need to be support.


	The requirement states:”The proposed system shall allow the ability for resources on scene to communicate via radio, voice, text and e-mail from any device available to that resource.”

The City would like the system to be capable of directly communicating with mobile devices via pages, text, email, etc.  The specific numbers associated with these devices will be part of the resource data.  Additionally the City would like the system to track which shared radio communication tools/channels have been assigned to which event in the ICS system.


	

	20
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Does Seattle want the vendor to propose or recommend hardware for the project?


	The City would like the vendors to provide the hardware specifications for the system required for the recommended deployment.
	

	21
	7/25/11
	8/01/11
	Can you estimate the number of seats that will have the ICS client installed?

	The city prefers a web deployment without a client component.  If a client component is required the number of clients should be 50-70.
	

	22
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	At the meeting it was noted that the form for Management Response would be changing for RFP-POL 201.

Will the release date of that change in forms coincide with the posting of the responses to vendor questions?


	See RFP revision in right column.
	Replace Management Response in Section 8, Line 7 with the following:
           
[image: image1.emf]COP Management  Response Rev1.doc



	23
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Does the City desire a separate volume for pricing?

· If no, where in the proposal should pricing be placed?

· If yes, are there any special formatting requirements?


	The pricing format of the “COP Pricing Response” in Section 8 Line 9 is a template for the vendors to use.  If there are additional components or if the licensing model of the vendor is different, please make the necessary adjustments in the pricing form.
	

	24
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Where in the response does the City require the Proposed Maintenance Support Agreement be located?


	You can attach your proposed maintenance/support agreement after #10, “Acceptance& Exceptions to City Contract”
	

	25
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	It is unclear if there are mandatory participation requirements for women and minority subcontracting. Please clarify


	There are no mandatory participation requirements for women and minority subcontracting and will not be scored.
	Section 8.3 “Vendor Questionnaire”, Page 1. Delete embedded document titled “Inclusion Plan”.  This document does not apply to this RFP.

	26
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	What is the source and amount of funding for initial software acquisition, services & deployment as well as ongoing sustainment?


	The project is fully funded by a UASI grant.  The total amount expected for the purchase, implementation, training of the system as well as the data integration portion is $350,000 - $400,000.  Ongoing sustainment will be funded through the City.
	

	27
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Is the City of Seattle preferential to a Self Host w. model or would they consider a hosted or SAAS (software as a service) implementation?


	The City prefers a self hosted implementation but is open to discussions about a SAAS model.  Security of data is our primary concern.
	

	28
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Does the City have a backup and recovery plan?  

· Can you share it?  

· Will the City require installation of a secondary system for failover at their location? 


	The City will have a backup plan for the system and servers.  A warm standby for failover is acceptable.

	

	29
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Would the City consider extending the submittal deadline so as the respondents can complete and submit a thorough response?


	The City will extend the deadline 1 week.
	On RFP face page, change closing/due date to August 17th, 2011.

	30
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Is there a specific preference on Relational Database technology...either Oracle or MS SQL Server?


	The City prefers MS SQL server due to the licensing costs.
	

	31
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Does the City of Seattle already own underlying MSFT licenses such as SQL, SharePoint and Windows Server?


	Yes, for SQL Server and Windows Server.  Our current license for Sharepoint is limited.
	

	32
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Regarding training, please identify how many operational users, administration/ technical users as well as train the trainer? 


	10 train the trainers

200 operational users

5 administration users

10 technical users.
	Section 6.1, “Scope of Work” Add the number of users shown at left. 

	33
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Can you further explain the 90 day trial period and when it commences, during negotiations, or after UAT? 


	Section 6.5, “Trial Period” is a 90-day vendor probationary period which allows for immediate contract cancellation for non-performance by the vendor and gives the City the right to award to the next highest ranked proposer.  The trial period will start upon the successful completion of UAT
	

	34
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Can you further explain "Data Integration" requirements?  

· Please specify what these applications are - HR, FinApp, Personnel?  

· Does their data reside in a flat file or have a relational database (which one)?  

· Do they support Web Services? 


	The data sources are from 5 agencies and will be a combination of flat files, databases and web services.  Our expectations are that we will be working with the vendor to implement the data exchanges.  The data mapping is underway.
We understand it may be difficult for the vendor to provide pricing for the unknown components.  We invite the vendors to either list the data integration components as separate line items with assumptions on type and complexity.
	

	35
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Is there a requirement for CAD/ Dispatch integration?  

If so, what is the current system?  


	Yes, there is a requirement to integrate CAD data but not directly with the CAD system.
	

	36
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Since there is a fixed price requirement for integration:  "Vendor will implement data exchanges with SFD, SPD, SDOT, SCL and SPU to achieve the functionality desired.", could you provide additional information on the systems in use at SFD, SPD, SDOT, SCL and SPU that the COP will have to exchange data with?


	We expect the data integration to largely be implemented via web services following NIEM standards.  Some data may be available in flat files or directly DB access.  The data mapping is currently underway.
We understand it may be difficult for the vendor to provide pricing for the unknown components.  We invite the vendors to either list the data integration components as separate line items with assumptions on type and complexity.
	

	37
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Since there is a fixed price requirement for custom report development:  "Vendor will develop ICS forms and reporting tools and standard reports.” Could you provide additional information on the quantity and complexity of the reports required?


	For the complexity of the ICS forms please see:  http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims/JobAids.shtm
 The forms can be implemented via a reporting tool such as Crystal Reports.
	

	38
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Since there is a fixed price requirement for integration:  "The system shall be integrated with the agencies HR systems so roster and call back information is up-to-date", could you provide additional information on the HR systems used by the agencies?

	We expect the data integration to largely be implemented via web services following NIEM standards.  Some data may be available in flat files or directly DB access.  The data mapping is currently underway.   For the purposes of the RFP expect 4 data sources each for the 5 agencies.  The data types are event, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources with a large emphasis on GIS data.  
We understand it may be difficult for the vendor to provide pricing for the unknown components.  We invite the vendors to either list the data integration components as separate line items with assumptions on type and complexity.
	

	39
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Since there is a fixed price requirement for integration:  "The system must be able to link to databases of agency personnel that can be used to populate ICS forms, support alerting and call-back, and support financial accounting and personal accountability.", could you provide additional information on the personnel databases used by the agencies?  Are these different than the agencies' HR systems?


	We expect the data integration to largely be implemented via web services following NIEM standards.  Some data may be available in flat files or directly DB access.  The data mapping is currently underway.   For the purposes of the RFP expect 4 data sources each for the 5 agencies.  The data types are event, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources with a large emphasis on GIS data.   The HR data is specific for each agency.
We understand it may be difficult for the vendor to provide pricing for the unknown components.  We invite the vendors to either list the data integration components as separate line items with assumptions on type and complexity.
	

	40
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Since there is a fixed price requirement for integration:  "The system proposed shall implement data exchanges for near real time data from many data sources.  This data integration will use NIEM, GIS and NIMS Standards as appropriate.  The data includes Event, resource, GIS, dynamic mapping, documents, video, location information, diagrams from participating City Agencies and external data sources for weather, public transit, news rss feeds, etc.", could you provide additional information on the quantity and complexity of these data sources that must be integrated with?  Or is the requirement to support this integration, but not actually do the integration?

	We are expecting the vendor to work with the agencies to implement the data integration.  Each City agency will implement needed components to make the data available to the COP system.   For the purposes of the RFP expect 4 data sources each for the 5 agencies.  The data types are event, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources with a large emphasis on GIS data.  The external data sources are expected to be easily implemented as data sources commonly published to the public or other government agencies.
We understand it may be difficult for the vendor to provide pricing for the unknown components.  We invite the vendors to either list the data integration components as separate line items with assumptions on type and complexity.
	

	41
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	How much data does the City expect to receive from the Simple Leads Management Software from the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children?  How does the City expect this system to integrate with the COP solution?


	The Simple Leads Management implementation in the COP system will be data entered by the operator.  Integration with another system is not required.
	

	42
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	What are the most common types of events in a system of this nature?  This will help us determine how many information exchanges to price.  By looking at the technical requirements, I am thinking: 1) Incident, 2) PAR information, 3) general events information, 4) integration with agency HR modules.


	Events, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources with a heavy emphasis of GIS data.   We understand it may be difficult for the vendor to provide pricing for the unknown components.  We invite the vendors to either list the data integration components as separate line items with assumptions on type and complexity.
	

	43
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	What are the end user products that the integrator will need to integrate  with to send data to the COTS systems

	This is being determined.  For sake of the response, assume there are 4 data sources for each entity (total of 20).  This is CAD, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources.  The data will be largely available via web services implemented in partnership with the vendor.  We understand it may be difficult for the vendor to provide pricing for the unknown components.  We invite the vendors to either list the data integration components as separate line items with assumptions on type and complexity.
	

	44
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	In Section 6.1, under “Scope of Work” “The Vendor will provide a COP service continuity management plan.”  

Can you please provide more information as to what is their intent of this requirement?


	The city is looking for the vendor’s plan for providing support.  This should include SLAs, Staffing, schedules, Processes and management contracts.

Please include your continuation of operations plan.
	

	45
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Is this project fully funded?  What is the anticipated project budget?


	The project is fully funded by a UASI grant.  The total amount expected for the purchase, implementation, training of the system as well as the data integration portion is $350,000 - $400,000.
	

	46
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Page 3:  Please specify the “existing data sources from multiple City departments”.


	This is being determined.  For sake of the response, assume there are 4 data sources for each entity (total of 20).  This is CAD, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources.  
	

	47
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Page 3:  What level of redundancy is required?


	The city desires a system that is highly available but not continuously.  Warm standby is acceptable.
	

	48
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Page 3:  What application is presently utilized to manage Incident Command System functions?


	The city does not currently have a system to manage integrated ICS functions.  SFD has eSpondor for fire related incidents.  The City’s EOC uses WebEOC.
	

	49
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Page 5:  Is the “preliminary set of data requirements” available for review as part of the proposal preparation process?


	This is being determined.  For sake of the response, assume there are 4 data sources for each entity (total of 20).  This is CAD, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources.  
	

	50
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Page 5:  Regarding the statement “Vendor will provide architecture and design recommendations”, must hardware costs be proposed or will the City acquire hardware separately based on vendor recommendations/specifications?


	The City would like the vendors to provide the hardware specifications for the system required for the recommended deployment.  Any required hardware will be purchased by the city separately.
	

	51
	7/27/11
	8/01/11
	Page 5:  Approximately how many data exchanges does the City anticipate implementing?  Have these exchanges been modeled?

	This is being determined.  For sake of the response, assume there are 4 data sources for each entity (total of 20).  This is CAD, Records, Equipment and Personnel sources.  The data for these exchanges is being mapped currently.
	

	52
	803/11
	8/04/11
	Our records indicate that the City of Seattle currently maintains two separate WebEOC licenses, each with current software support, licensed separately to the following two entities: 

· Seattle EOC 

· Seattle Police Operations.

The WebEOC implementation licensed to Seattle Police Operations is not mentioned in the response to question# 48. 

Please provide additional information on how the City envisions the COP system sharing data with WebEOC implementation licensed and operated by the Seattle EOC as well as the WebEOC implementation licensed and operated by Seattle Police Department. 


	The Seattle Police Department does have an ESI Acquisition WebEOC license, but it has not been upgraded in many years.  If the vendor envisions the use of that license in their response, it should include the upgrade to a current version on platform that supports the entire Seattle COP community.
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Vendor’s Name: ______________________________________________________________



City of Seattle RFP #POL-201

Common Operating Picture System (COP)


Management Response

Company Experience 

1. How many years has the company been engaged in implementing COP software systems similar in size to the City of Seattle in public or private environments?  Please describe implementation projects most comparable to the solution being proposed to the City.


2. Please provide a brief company history and overview.   

Company Organization


		Please attach an organization chart.




		



		How many employees does the company have associated with COP software systems?

		United States                        # employees

Pacific Northwest


WA, OR, ID, AK:                  # employees

Outside the  US:                     # employees





		How many employees are associated with these types of products/systems does the company have in each of the following categories?




		Customer Support:                 # employees

Installation & Training:          # employees

Product Development:           # employees

Sales, Marketing:                   # employees



		Average annual staff turnover rate for employees in key staff positions

		



		Location of office that will serve as the primary contact during implementation

		     



		Does the company have any user group support organizations?

		Yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
              No FORMCHECKBOX 
     

Title of Organization:



		Identify the closest meeting location that your company has for the Seattle area

		





Financial Information.  

		What was the Company’s annual gross revenue during the last three fiscal years?

		FY 2007          

FY 2008           


FY 2009          



		What was the percentage of gross revenues invested in research and development?

		  %         



		What was the average annual company sales volume for COP software systems for the previous three (3) fiscal years?

		



		What percentage of gross revenues does the sales volume for DEMS Software represent?

		%



		Attach a copy of the Company’s Dunn & Bradstreet report. 

		Attached    FORMCHECKBOX 
  



		As an Exhibit, describe your firm’s ability to finance additional costs that would be incurred by your firm in the event your firm is awarded a Vendor Contract resulting from this solicitation.  State, if any, the amount your firm would need to borrow and provide documentation from your firm’s lender stating its willingness to lend such amount to your firm.

		Attached    FORMCHECKBOX 
  





Current Commitments

As an Attachment, list at least ten of the highest dollar contracts currently held by your firm. If you have held less than ten, list all that have been held.  For each contract, state the client’s name, a brief description of the items provided by your firm, the dollar value of the contract, the approximate share of current income derived from the contract, and the expected contract termination date.   


Attach a discussion that addresses how these or other current commitments affect the ability to support the City scope of work.  Explain any staffing and schedule overlaps, and how the Vendor proposes to ensure that such commitments or potential overlaps will not affect the City of Seattle schedule and project delivery.

Previous Experience & References

As an Attachment, list all contracts with similar scope and magnitude held within the previous five years.  If you are a national company, you may list all contracts held by the office that will serve the City of Seattle. Provide: Client’s name, contact person’s name, title, telephone number and/or email address, the dollar value of the contract, the contact start and completion dates, and a brief description of the items provided by your firm.  Indicate whether the contract was similar in size, scope, and/or complexity as required by the City in this solicitation.  These may be contacted and used as references, along with other sources that may be provided to the City in your response or that are otherwise known to the City.

Terminations 

If any, list any contracts that have been terminated before the project completion in last five years with your firm (if you are national company, list those terminations for the office that will serve the City of Seattle).  Indicate whether contract was terminated for Default (defined as a notice to Vendor to stop performance due to Vendor’s non-performance or poor performance) and whether the issue was (a) not litigated; or (b) litigated and such litigation determined the Vendor to be in default.  If any, attach a 

description of the deficiencies in performance and describe whether and how the deficiencies were remedied.  The City will evaluate the information and may also at its sole discretion, reject the Vendor’s 

Response if the information indicates that completion of a contract resulting from this solicitation may be jeopardized by the responsibility history of this Vendor.  These may be contacted as a resource to the City for assessing references and responsibility.

Have you had any early Contract Terminations?   Yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
              No FORMCHECKBOX 
     

If yes, are termination descriptions attached?  Yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
              No FORMCHECKBOX 
     

Prime Contractor 

If your proposal includes hardware, software and services from a third party, the Company must act as prime contractor for procurement of all proposed products and services.  Prime contractor shall be the sole point of contact for contractual issues including payment of any and all charges resulting from the purchase of the proposed hardware, software, and services.  Prime contractor must take responsibility for demonstration, delivery, installation, and acceptance testing of all items proposed.  Prime contractor must also provide maintenance, warranty and ensure third-party warranties are extended to City.

1.  Will Vendor utilize Subcontractors?   Yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
              No FORMCHECKBOX 
     

2.  If yes, attach a clear description of how you as prime contractor will direct work of all subcontractors to ensure the quality and timeliness of work performed by the Company and all subcontractors.      Attached?  Yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
              No FORMCHECKBOX 
     

If you responded yes and are utilizing subcontractors (or third party vendors), then also complete the following chart.

		Third Party Vendor Name

		Number of previous partnerships with this Vendor

		Location of Previous Partnerships with this Vendor

		Description of Installed and Configured Service



		Project Management Services

		     

		     

		     



		Application Software Programs

		     

		     

		     



		Other Software

		     

		     

		     



		Training

		     

		     

		     



		Client Devices/Hardware

		     

		     

		     



		Data Base Administration

		     

		     

		     



		Networking/Infrastructure

		     

		     

		     



		Security

		     

		     

		     



		Data Conversion Development

		     

		     

		     



		External System Interfaces Development

		     

		     

		     



		Functional/Business  Analysis

		     

		     

		     



		Testing

		     

		     

		     



		Deployment

		     

		     

		     





Prime – No Subcontracting

For vendors offering a solution provided as a prime vendor with no subcontractors, describe whether any component within the product offering has been previously owned by another company. For example, if your company purchased an image scanning system from another company and then integrated it with your software application, you must divulge the image scanning software’s ownership history. 


Proposed Project Approach


Attach a discussion of your proposed project approach, including a detailed project plan.


Project Organization


Provide a diagram that illustrates the Vendor’s project organization.  Include the names of key project staff and any subcontractors.  Identify all internal and external communication paths, including within the Vendor’s project staff and between the Vendor and City project staff.


Project Team Matrix

Complete the matrix with the number of years of experience for each proposed team member/key staff in each subject area. 

		Team Member Name:

		Years of Experience in Project Manager:

		Years of Experience in Business Analysis

		Years of Experience Training

		Years of Experience servicing Public Sector Clients



		

		     

		     

		     

		     



		

		     

		     

		     

		     



		

		     

		     

		     

		     



		

		     

		     

		     

		     



		

		     

		     

		     

		     



		

		     

		     

		     

		     





Key Staff 

Describe the project roles and responsibilities for each key staff member and sub-contractor identified in the Project Organization diagram.

Key Staff Experience

Vendor shall provide resumes and three (3) references from previous clients for all key staff members.  Resumes for each person shall include the following information:


· Current position with the Vendor


· Years with the company


· Project position to be staffed


· Education and Training


· Work experience, including past positions with the Vendor’s company


· Technical skills and qualifications relevant to the project


· Specific description of experience in working with the proposed software/system, including experience in system design, installation, support, training or management

Location of Key Staff or Project Team


The City prefers to work with a Vendor that has key staff or project teams located near The City.  Provide  a list that describes the geographic distribution of key staff members.  If key staff members or project teams are available to work locally, please provide information regarding the duration of their availability.


Key Staff Assignment Priority


In responding to this RFP, Vendor warrants that any key staff members identified by the Vendor 


and accepted by the City shall be dedicated to the City’s project as that person’s primary assignment for the duration of such person’s employment by the Vendor and that any change in assigned key staff is subject to prior City approval in writing.


Project Management


Designate the Project Manager who will have overall, daily responsibility for the project.  This person will be responsible for the Vendor’s project management and coordination with the City.  

Provide an organizational chart that shows the Project Manager’s reporting relationships within the Vendor’s organization. The Vendor should also describe the type and level of authority vested in the Project Manager in regards to coordinating the Vendor resources in support of the project.


Project Manager Qualifications

The Vendor must provide detailed information regarding the designated Project Manager’s experience with projects of similar size and complexity. In addition to the information provided above, list and describe all projects performed by the Project Manager for similar work..

Projected Resources Required by City of Seattle

Based on past experience with projects of this size and scope, please describe the level of staffing support required of the City during the following project phases:


· Development of the Detailed Design Document


· Project implementation


· Warranty


· Post-warranty


Please be specific in describing the number of positions required, roles, responsibilities, and prerequisite skills of all staff members.
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